
 1

 
AGENDA 

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2015, 5:30 P.M. 

 
ORGANIZATIONAL AND REGULAR MEETING 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
INVOCATION – Reverend Scott McInnis, Red Branch Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – The Honorable Judy Martin, Register of Deeds 
 

I. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
II. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
IV. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
V. RECOGNITIONS 
 

A. Dog Tags Class (Mary Jo Morris) 
 
VI. PRESENTATIONS 

 
A. Public Safety Ordinance (Bryan Phillips) 

 
VII. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate 
discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 

 
A. Public Official Bonds 
B. Minutes: November 17, 2015 Regular Meeting and Closed Session 
C. Minutes: November 17, 2015 Special Meeting  
D. Budget Amendments 
E. Tax Releases/Refunds – November 2015 
F. County Facilities Expansion Project Ordinance Revision # 5 
G. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for “Patterson Lot 8” 
H. Amendment to FY16 Budget Ordinance, Sec. 10 Trust & Agency Funds 

 
 



 2

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Public Hearing/Planning – 2012 Scattered Site Housing CDBG Closeout 

(Debra Ensminger) 
 

IX. OLD BUSINESS 
 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Public Safety – Approval of Advanced Life Support Equipment 

Purchase/Lease Agreement (Bryan Phillips) 
 
B. Human Resources – Authorization for Changes to Health Benefit Plan 

Summary Plan Description (Denise Brook) 
 

C. Public Works – Approval of Property Exchange with Village of Pinehurst 
(Randy Gould) 

 
D. Public Works – Approval of Bar Rake Purchase Award (Randy Gould) 

 
XI. APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. Fire Commission Chair and Vice Chair 
B. Local Emergency Planning Committee 
C. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
D. Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 

 
XII. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XIII. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
XIV. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
XV. CLOSED SESSION – pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 Fire Commission, Thursday, December 10, 6:00pm (Ritter) 
 Citizens Pet Responsibility, Wednesday, December 16, 10:00am (Ritter) 
 DSS Board, Wednesday, December 16, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Christmas Holidays, County Offices Closed, December 24 and 25 
 Pre-Agenda Meeting, Wednesday, December 30, 9:00am 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments 
and suggestions for the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set 
aside for the purpose of receiving such comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during 
the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be 
limited to a maximum of thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet 

available on the table outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact 
information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No 
one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to 

speak will only be entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be 
yielded to him/her by another individual who has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up 

sheet.  Speakers will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating 
their name and address. 

 
5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board 

members may, in their discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ 
comments.  Any response by a commissioner to a speaker during the public comment period does not open 
discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address all comments to the Board as a whole 
and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the audience will not be 
allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, 

discriminatory or embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  
Speaker must be respectful and courteous in their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of 
profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed 

up get to speak, those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such 
remarks and documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking 

public office, including the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session 
matters, including but not limited to matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, 
personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made confidential by law; matters which are the subject of 
public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in 

the rear of the Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.























































clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. A.























































 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2015 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, November 17, 
2015 in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Second Floor, Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Otis Ritter, Jerry Daeke, Catherine Graham, 
Randy Saunders 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None  
         
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
enter into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and (a)(6). 
 
The Board reported no action upon returning from closed session. 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 
At 5:30 p.m., Reverend Matt Templeton of Grace Church provided the invocation and Social Services Director 
John Benton led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would address during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Ms. O’Linda Watkins, representing the Moore County NAACP, spoke in opposition to a proposed ¼ cent sales 
tax increase, citing its negative impact on low-income persons.  She suggested that if the Board chose to move 
forward with a referendum on the sales tax, that an increase in the property tax rate also be included as an 
alternative option.   
 
Mr. Charles Mirman discouraged the sale of a fire truck to be surplused by the Moore County Airport 
Authority.   
 
Mr. Fenton Wilkinson implored the Board to take the sales tax increase option off the table and funds the 
Schools’ project needs through an increased property tax rate.  
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. B.12/8/2015



 2

Ms. Ellie Collins stated her opposition to the proposed increase in sales tax, citing it as a regressive tax. 
 
Ms. Mary Jo Morris shared that the newest Dog Tags class was in its third week and that the Sheriff had 
provided lights so the dogs could be worked with in the evenings.  Ms. Morris shared also that she had just 
completed a CPR seminar with Public Safety Deputy Director Scot Brooks and she said that it was very 
beneficial.   
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to pull the 
following items from the agenda:  call to public hearing regarding text amendments to the Unified Development 
Ordinance; facilities security update; water purchase contract with the Town of Carthage. 

 
RECOGNITIONS 

 
Adoption Awareness Month Proclamation 
 
Social Services Director John Benton and staff presented information regarding adoptions in Moore County.  
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to 
proclaim November 2015 as Adoption Awareness Month in Moore County and to urge citizens to recognize and 
support this observance.  The proclamation is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as 
Appendix A. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Quarterly Fiscal Report for Sandhills Center for Mental Health/Developmental Disabilities/Substance 
Abuse Services 
 
Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong presented the quarterly fiscal report for Sandhills Center for Mental 
Health/Developmental Disabilities/Substance Abuse Services.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Saunders, 
seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to accept the report. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: October 20, 2015 Regular Meeting and Closed Session 
Minutes: October 20, 2015 Special Meeting 
Minutes: October 20, 2015 Special Meeting with Board of Education 
Budget Amendments 
Tax Releases/Refunds – October 2015 
Register of Deeds Fee Schedule Amendment 
Moore County Transportation Fee Schedule Amendment 
Moore County Schools Digital Learning Invoices 
Project Budget Ordinance and Resolution for Airport Project 36237.67.6.1 and Authorization for County 
Manager to Sign Grant Agreement Paperwork for RW 23 Approach Clearing Phase 2 
 
The budget amendments, tax releases and refunds resolutions, and Airport project budget ordinance and 
resolution are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices B, C, and D, 
respectively. 



 3

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Veterinary Clinic 
 
The following italicized portion of these minutes is verbatim: 
 
Chairman Nick Picerno:  The next item on the agenda is a request by David Garza, for a Conditional Use 
Permit for the use of veterinary clinic.  The hearing on this matter is judicial in nature and will be conducted in 
accordance with special due process safeguards.  Members of the Board may cross examine witnesses after the 
witnesses testify when questions are called for by the Chairman.  The testimony that witnesses give today shall 
be taken under oath.  If a witness wants the Board to see written evidence such as reports, maps, pictures, or 
other exhibits, he or she should be familiar with the evidence and should explain the document and ask that it 
be introduces during or at the end of his or her testimony.  Any attorneys who speak should not give factual 
testimony but may summarize their clients’ case.  Anyone who wants to testify in this matter should have signed 
up on the sign-up sheet.  If you wish to speak and haven not signed up, then please sign up now.  And I assume 
you have the sheet?  Ok, is anybody needing to sign up that has not signed up?  All of you who wish to speak 
and have signed up, please go to the front to be sworn in or give your affirmation.   
 
Clerk administers oath. 
 
Chairman:  I would also like to ask any Board members who have any information or special knowledge about 
this case to describe that information for the record so that interested persons will know and can respond.  
Before opening the hearing, I’d like to give Board members a chance to reveal any possible conflicts and 
withdraw from these proceedings if necessary.  Conflicts include but are not limited to a member having a fixed 
opinion prior to hearing the matter not susceptible to change, an undisclosed ex parte communications, a close 
family, business, or other associational relationship with the affected person, or a financial interest in the 
outcome of the matter.  If the objection is raised to a member’s participation and that member does not recuse 
himself or herself, the remaining members shall by majority vote rule on the objection.  In this hearing, we will 
first hear from the Planning staff, then from the applicant and their witnesses, and then from the opponents to 
the request.  Parties may cross-examine witnesses after the witness testifies when questions are called for.  If 
you want the Board to see written evidence such as reports, maps, or exhibits, the witness who is familiar with 
the evidence should ask that it be introduced during or at the end of his or her testimony.  We cannot accept 
reports from persons who are not here to testify.  Attorneys who speak should not give factual testimony, but 
may summarize their client’s case.  The County Attorney will correct you if you do not follow the proper 
procedure.  Before you begin your testimony, please clearly identify yourself for the record.  At the end of all 
testimony, the staff will present their recommendations to the Board.  I now open the public hearing and ask the 
Planning staff to make the presentation on this request. 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger:  Thank you Mr. Chairman and good evening, members of the Board.  My 
name is Debra Ensminger and I’m the Planning Director for the County of Moore.  I’d like to first enter my 
staff report and this presentation into the record.  As stated, David Garza is seeking a two year vested right 
Conditional Use Permit to operate a veterinarian clinic in an existing building located at 125 West Plaza Drive 
in West End in Seven Lakes West on parcel number 97000323 owned by Phillip and Pamela Harrell, Harrell, 
excuse me, as identified in the Moore County tax records.  The parcel is approximately 1.2 acres in size.  This 
case was properly advertised and all adjacent property owners have been notified.  The property is zoned 
Village Business which requires a Conditional Use Permit for a veterinarian clinic.  All adjacent properties are 
currently and also zoned Village Business.  The current use of the property is a real estate office and the 
adjacent land uses include a shopping center comprising of a church, retail, medical office, and a restaurant.  
The existing building on site was built in 1999.  The building will not be expanded and the veterinarian clinic 
will not include outdoor kennels.  The applicant intends to lease a portion of the building as indicated in the 
attachment Phase I for one year.  After one year, the applicant intends to purchase the property and occupy the 



 4

entire building as indicated in the attachment Phase II.  Therefore, the applicant is requesting a two year vested 
right approval to occupy the entire building.  The existing septic system will be enlarged to serve the entire site.  
The submitted application and site plan meets all required standards and conditions set forth in the Moore 
County Unified Development Ordinance.  The Moore County Planning Board reviewed this request during their 
October 1, 2015 meeting and voted unanimously to endorse the Moore County Board of Commissioners to 
approve a two year vesting of the Conditional Use Permit for the use of a veterinarian clinic on the parcel 
known as ParID number 97000323.  There are required findings of fact that the Board must consider when 
approving a conditional use permit.  Number one, that the use will not materially endanger the public health or 
safety if located where proposed and developed according to plan; that the use meets all required conditions 
and specifications; that the use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless 
the use is a public necessity; the location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as 
submitted and approved, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and will be in general 
conformity with the approved Moore County Land Use Plan adopted in November 2013.  Goal number 1.7 
clearly states support and promote local businesses.  Additional conditions we will request of the applicant:  
Should the Zoning Administrator, Building Inspector, Environmental Health, Public Utilities, or the Fire 
Marshal identify minor changes, staff will be authorized to accept such minor modifications to site plan as 
necessary; the veterinary clinic shall not include outdoor kennels; and the applicant shall have a two year, shall 
have two years, excuse me, to occupy the entire building through vested right approval.  And, that’s all I have, 
Chairman.   
 
Chairman:  Does any member of the Board have any questions for Planning staff regarding this request? 
 
Commissioner Jerry Daeke:  The location is where Mr. Harrell had his real estate office, is that correct? 
 
Director Ensminger:  Yes. 
 
Chairman:  What happens after the two years? 
 
Director Ensminger:  The conditional, if he doesn’t do it, the conditional use permit’s void. 
 
Chairman:  Ok, so he’s got two years to occupy it? 
 
Director Ensminger:  Yes. 
 
Chairman:  Ok.  Any other questions?  We will now hear from the applicant and other proponents of the 
request.  If there are attorneys or other representatives who will give a general summary of the client’s position, 
then you go first.  Do we have anybody signed up?  No?  Are you the, do you have anything you would like to 
state at this time? 
 
David Garza:  I just wanted to say thank you for considering this and I’m here basically to answer any 
questions that you might have about the proposed business or anything thereof.   
 
Chairman:  Ok, are there any questions from the Board for this gentleman?  Thank you sir.  We will now hear 
from people opposing the request.  Anyone here, again, signed up to oppose?  Does the Board or any other 
parties have any other questions for any other witnesses?  You have any further comments? 
 
Director Ensminger:  No, sir. 
 
Chairman:  Does the Board or any other parties have any further questions?  Does the staff have a 
recommendation? 
 



 5

Director Ensminger:  Yes, sir, make a motion to approve the conditional use permit with the approved, with the 
provided conditions.   
 
Commissioner Randy Saunders:  So moved. 
 
Commissioner Daeke:  Second. 
 
Chairman:  I have a motion and a second.  Any discussion further?  All in favor say aye.  (Unanimous ayes).  
Opposed say no.  Motion carries 5-0, and I now close the public hearing.  Thank you so much.   
 
Documents for the record pertaining to this conditional use permit request are hereby incorporated as a part of 
these minutes by attachment as Appendix E. 

 
Call to Public Hearing/Planning – 2012 Scattered Site CDBG Closeout 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board call a public hearing regarding closeout of the 
County’s 2012 Scattered Site Housing Community Development Block Grant.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to call a public hearing on 
December 8, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. to solicit public participation relative to the intention of the County to close out 
its 2012 Scattered Site Housing CDBG. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Public Safety: 
 
Approval of Contract Amendment # 1 with Village of Pinehurst for Fire Protection, Rescue, and Medical 
Response 
 
Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips requested the Board’s approval of an amendment to the contract with the 
Village of Pinehurst for Fire Protection, Rescue, and Medical Response.  Mr. Phillips said the County and 
Village desired to amend the original agreement dated June 12, 2007 for fire protection to include emergency 
response services in the scope of service by this written contract amendment number one while keeping in 
effect the terms and conditions of the original agreement.  Discussion followed regarding the level of service 
and cost.  Commissioner Saunders made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to approve the contract 
amendment with the Village of Pinehurst and authorize the Chairman to execute all necessary documents.  
Chairman Picerno asked if the necessary funds were available in the ALS budget and Mr. Phillips said yes.  The 
motion carried 5-0.  
 
Public Works: 
 
Approval of Change Order # 4 to Contract with Terry’s Plumbing and Utilities for 2013 Water Resources 
Project 
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould requested the Board’s approval of change order # 4 with Terry’s Plumbing 
and Utilities for the 2013 water resources project, increasing the contract by $29,274 to cover additional 
SCADA work and concrete risers and curb/gutter to Bertie Road.  Upon inquiry by Chairman Picerno, Mr. 
Gould verified these funds would be covered by the contingency budget.  Upon motion made by Commissioner 
Saunders, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve change order # 4 with Terry’s 
Plumbing for the 2013 water resources project and authorize the Chairman to sign. 

 
 



 6

Approval of Agreement between the County of Moore and East Moore Water District 
 
Mr. Gould requested adoption of resolutions approving an agreement between the County and the East Moore 
Water District.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board 
voted 5-0 to adopt the resolution approving the agreement between the County of Moore and the East Moore 
Water District and authorize the Chairman to sign on behalf of the County.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn as the Moore 
County Board of Commissioners and convene as the East Moore Water District.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Saunders, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the resolution 
approving a water purchase contract between the East Moore Water District and the County of Moore and 
authorize the Vice Chairman to sign on behalf of the East Moore Water District.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Saunders, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn as the East Moore 
Water District and reconvene as the Moore County Board of Commissioners.  The resolutions are hereby 
incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix F. 

 
Legal: 
 
Approval of Amendment # 1 to Nonprofit Grant Agreement with Sandhills Center 
 
County Attorney Misty Leland presented an amendment to the grant agreement with Sandhills Center for 
Mental Health/Developmental Disabilities/Substance Abuse Services, reducing the total amount in order to 
provide matching funds for a Governor’s Crime Commission grant for the Sheriff’s Office.  Vice Chairman 
Ritter made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to approve amendment no. 1 to the nonprofit grant 
agreement with the Sandhills Center and authorize the Chairman to sign the same.  Chairman Picerno thanked 
Sandhills Center CEO Victoria Whitt for allowing the County to use these funds toward the grant.  The motion 
to approve the amendment carried 5-0. 

 
Adoption of Resolution Calling a Special Advisory Referendum Concerning the Levy of a ¼ Cent County Sales 
and Use Tax 
 
Ms. Leland reviewed that a resolution was required to be adopted by the commissioners and delivered to the 
Board of Elections in order to move forward with an advisory referendum concerning the levy of a ¼ cent sales 
and use tax.  Commissioner Saunders made a motion, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, to approve the 
Resolution Calling a Special Advisory Referendum Concerning the Levy of a One-Quarter Cent County Sales 
and Use Tax and authorize the Chairman to sign the same.  Commissioner Saunders discussed the needs of the 
schools and said those suggesting Moore County should do what other places were doing (in terms of funding) 
did not have a pulse on what was going on.  He said schools were the number one economic driver and the sales 
tax would be only .25 cents on a $100 purchase (excluding grocery and gas purchases).  Commissioner 
Saunders said every cent of the proposed sales tax should go to the Schools, and he discussed how the County’s 
tourism industry would boost the amount.  Commissioner Daeke explained to citizens the difference in the tax 
bases between Moore County and surrounding counties.  The motion to adopt the resolution carried 5-0.  The 
resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix G. 
 
Commissioner Saunders asked the Board to excuse him from the remainder of the meeting so he could 
attend his son’s sports banquet at Union Pines High School.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, 
seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to excuse Commissioner Saunders from the 
remainder of the meeting. 

 
 
 



 7

Adoption of Resolution Specifying the Proceeds for the ¼ Cent County Sales and Use Tax if Approved in the 
Special Advisory Referendum on March 15, 2016 
 
Ms. Leland reviewed a resolution specifying the proceeds from the ¼ cent sales and use tax, if approved, to be 
used for the Schools.  Commissioner Graham made a motion, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, to approve the 
Resolution Specifying the Proceeds from the One-Quarter Cent County Sales and Use Tax Under Article 46 of 
Chapter 105 of NCGS, which designates revenues from the Article 46 tax, if passed on March 15, 2016, to 
Moore County Public Schools’ major capital building projects as set forth in the Resolution and authorize the 
Chairman to sign the same on condition that the Sandhills Community College Board approves the same.  
Chairman Picerno discussed that a capital school construction fund would be set up so everything would be 
very transparent to the public.  The Chairman discussed the raising of the property tax rate seven years prior.  
The motion to adopt the resolution carried 4-0.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes 
by attachment as Appendix H. 

 
Adoption of Resolution Supporting Senate Bill 605 
 
Ms. Leland reviewed a resolution supporting Senate Bill 605, which contains revisions to Article 46 of Chapter 
105 of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizing an increase in the maximum rate of local sales and use 
tax that may be levied under this Article from one-quarter percent to one-half percent.  Upon motion made by 
Chairman Picerno, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to approve the resolution supporting 
the revisions to Article 46 of Chapter 105 of the North Carolina General Statutes as stipulated in Senate Bill 605 
(2015-2016) and request the Bill as it pertains to Article 46 to be ratified into law.  The resolution is hereby 
incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix I. 

 
Adoption of Resolution Requesting Restoration of Lottery Funds Designated to Moore County for School 
Capital Needs 
 
Ms. Leland reviewed a resolution requesting the General Assembly to give Moore County its statutory share of 
lottery funds.  Commissioner Graham made a motion, seconded by Chairman Picerno, to approve the resolution 
requesting the North Carolina General Assembly to allocate to Moore County its statutory share of lottery funds 
of 40% to be used for Moore County Schools capital needs and that copies of the resolution be forwarded to the 
local legislation delegation to the North Carolina General Assembly and the North Carolina Association of 
County Commissioners.  Chairman Picerno discussed that lottery funds began being moved under the Governor 
Easley administration, continued under the Perdue administration, and had become even worse under the 
McCrory administration.  He said the County was facing huge capital needs for the Schools and its 40% 
statutory share of lottery funds was down to 18%.  He implored citizens to assist in telling legislators to restore 
these funds.  The motion to adopt the resolution carried 4-0.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of 
these minutes by attachment as Appendix J. 

 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
Library Board of Trustees 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to 
appoint Dr. Patty Buelt to the Library Board of Trustees to fill the unexpired term of Dr. John Stacy through 
March 31, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 



 8

Sandhills Regional Library System Board 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 4-0 to 
appoint Rev. Richard Rodda to the Sandhills Regional Library System Board to fill the unexpired term of Dr. 
John Stacy through June 30, 2018. 
 
Local Emergency Planning Committee 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 4-0 to 
appoint Cynthia Bradley to the Red Cross representative position on the Local Emergency Planning Committee 
to fill the unexpired term of the former member through March 31, 2016. 
 
Fire Commission 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to appoint 
Mike Cameron, David Kennedy, Brian Tyner, Mark Steward, and Colin Webster to the Fire Commission for 
two-year terms expiring November 30, 2017. 
 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to appoint 
the following to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council for two-year terms commencing December 1, 2015 and 
expiring November 30, 2017:  Bart Davis (Chief of Police), Gene McCrae (Substance Abuse Professional), 
Michael Campbell (Person Under Age 18), Matthew Rothbeind (Juvenile Defense Attorney), Skipper Creed 
(Chief District Judge Appointee), Renee Brooks (Commissioner Appointee), and Buddy Howell (Commissioner 
Appointee). 
 
Aging Advisory Council 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 4-0 to 
appoint Karen Koenig, Mimi Deardorff, and Jane Francks to the Aging Advisory Council for three-year terms 
expiring November 30, 2018. 
 
RSVP Advisory Council 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to 
appoint Ruth Craig to the RSVP Advisory Council for a three-year term expiring November 30, 2018. 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest reported the following: 
 

 The commissioners’ annual retreat, aka the “Winter Summit,” was scheduled for January 7 and 8, 2016.  
A draft agenda was distributed and recommendations from the Board welcomed. 

 An informational brochure on the Article 46 sales tax was drafted and under review in the County 
Attorney’s office. 

 A State bond referendum, Connect NC, if approved, would provide some funds in Moore County. 
 Draft letters to property owners regarding the condition of the Stanley furniture plant property in West 

End were distributed for the Board’s review.   



 9

 A shredding and hazardous waste disposal event was held the previous Saturday.  It was spearheaded by 
Solid Waste Division Manager/Keep Moore County Beautiful Executive Director Chad Beane and was 
well-organized and well-attended. 

 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
Commissioner Graham thanked citizens who spoke during the public comment period for being present at the 
meeting and for feeling free to come and speak to the Board. 
 
Vice Chairman Ritter also thanked these citizens for attending, and he thanked Mr. Vest for following up on the 
West End property issue.   
 
Commissioner Daeke thanked the public commenters and said their information was well-presented. 
 
Chairman Picerno wished all employees a happy Thanksgiving.  He asked everyone to remember Greg Hankins 
with the Seven Lakes Times in their prayers as he was dealing with a health issue.  He offered special thanks to 
veterans and discussed his father’s experience as a POW in the Korean War.   
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to come 
out of closed session and seal the minutes. 
 
With no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Ritter, the 
Board voted 4-0 to adjourn the November 17, 2015 regular meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 6:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
        __________________________________________ 
        Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 



1 
 

 

MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL MEETING  

NOVEMBER 17, 2015 AT 2:00 P.M. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Otis Ritter, Jerry Daeke, 
Catherine Graham, Randy Saunders 

Commissioners Absent:  None 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners convened for a special meeting on Tuesday, 
November 17, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room of the Historic 
Courthouse, Carthage, NC. 

Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order.  County Manager Wayne Vest provided the 
invocation and Commissioner Saunders led the Pledge of Allegiance.   

Chairman Picerno thanked everyone for being in attendance at the meeting, with special 
acknowledgement of fire/rescue personnel, and he also acknowledged veterans as the Veterans 
Day holiday was celebrated the week prior.   

Chairman Picerno gave the floor to Mr. Vest, who recognized Fire Commission Chairman Mike 
Cameron to present information regarding the Fire Commission’s recommended tax distribution 
formula and capital funding model.   

Chief Cameron expressed appreciation for the opportunity to present the information and 
recognized his fellow Fire Commission members.  Chief Cameron, joined by Fire Commission 
Vice Chairman Larry Upchurch and Moore County Chiefs’ Association President Rich Lambdin, 
provided a presentation, which is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as 
Appendix A.   

Following the presentation, Chairman Picerno congratulated the Fire Commission members for 
their hard work and said the Board appreciated their diligence and communication with the fire 
departments.  He said the proposal should also be discussed with each of the local municipal 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. C. 12/8/2015



2 
 

governing boards.  Chairman Picerno noted a shortfall in funding compared to what was 
proposed and said the tax rate was not the only way to solve that issue.   

Commissioner Saunders asked whether any residents would see a savings in homeowners 
insurance due to improved ISO ratings and Chief Cameron said they could, but it might affect 
businesses more so than residences.   

Commissioner Graham asked if departments with more apparatuses than others would be able to 
keep them or if they would have to sell them and Chief Cameron said they would just not be 
funded for replacement.   

Vice Chairman Ritter inquired about a proposed 12 minutes to on scene response time and if it 
could be accomplished.  Chief Cameron said North Carolina requires every department to 
respond with one engine and four personnel to a structure fire.  He said the 12 minutes was 
obtainable with some paid staff especially.  He said 80% of the time would be the average as 
there would be some calls with longer response times due to other calls or distance.  Chief 
Cameron said service delivery was the bottom line.   

Commissioner Daeke asked about departments that had contracts with other counties and Chief 
Cameron said they would be treated the same as a municipality.  

Chairman Picerno discussed the difficulty in budgeting for the fire departments previously 
through the former Emergency Services Advisory Committee (now dissolved).  He said the 
unified fire tax and standardized service would be hard because it was a change, but that from a 
governing body perspective it was much better as there was now a basis for the funding.  He said 
of utmost importance to him was hearing the feedback from the departments and from the 
municipal governing boards.  Chairman Picerno said he could tell a lot of work went into what 
was presented by the Fire Commission and that it showed the character of the people in Moore 
County.   

Commissioner Saunders shared that he spent seven years as a member of a municipal board and 
was very involved with the budget.  He discussed the importance of response time for rural areas 
especially.  He agreed with Chairman Picerno that there would be more options than the tax rate 
to come up with needed funding, and he also agreed that the amount of effort put forth by the 
Fire Commission was monumental. 

Commissioner Graham said she was very humbled to see all the first responders present at the 
meeting.  She said she was proud of all those on the Fire Commission and very appreciative of 
them.  She said also she was glad to see town managers and mayors present and thanked 
everyone. 



3 
 

Vice Chairman Ritter said the Fire Commission members were the most professional group that 
had been in the County and that they had put in quality work.  He said he was set on achieving 
the 12 minute response time and even improving upon it. 

Commissioner Daeke shared his appreciation for firefighters and thanked the Fire Commission 
for everything done.   

Chairman Picerno wished a happy Thanksgiving and merry Christmas to everyone. 

There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the November 17, 2015 special meeting 
of the Moore County Board of Commissioners at 3:10 p.m. 

 

        
 

____________________________________ 
       Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 

 

________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 

 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. D.























clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. E.12/8/2015















clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. F.









clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. G.



























clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII. H.



























2012 Scattered Site Close Out Public Hearing 

 
       Agenda Item: ___________ 
                                                                                                      Meeting Date: December 8, 2015 

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:   November 20, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Request to hold a closeout public hearing for the 2012 Scattered Site 

Housing CDBG 
 
PRESENTER:  Tim Emmert 
   Planning Supervisor 
 
 
REQUEST: 
This is a request to hold a Public Hearing on December 8, 2015 at 5:30 pm to solicit public 
participation relative to the intention of the county to close out its 2012 Scattered Site Housing CDBG.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The 2012 Scattered Site Housing Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program application 
was approved for submittal by the Board of Commissioners in October 2012.  The application was 
approved and a grant agreement for the program was approved by the board in June 2013.  The 
County requested a release of program funds in August 2013.  In November 2013 the Division of 
Community Assistance (DCA) made program funds available to the County.  Between December 
2013 and March 2014 staff secured contracts for services required under this program. 
 
In its application the County committed to serving four low income homeowners.  Between April 2014 
and September 2015 staff facilitated the substantial rehabilitation of five income-qualified homes.  The 
homes were located in Southern Pines (2), Taylortown (2) and Aberdeen (1). 
 
The closeout process consists of the call to public hearing held on November 17th, the public hearing, a 
monitoring visit by DCA (as yet not scheduled), and the submission of documents (attached) related to 
the closeout. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Hold the public hearing. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
No matching funds were committed to this program 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
None required. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Closeout documents including copy of advertising. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. A.



















MOORE COUNTY 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
FY 2012 CDBG SCATTERED SITE HOUSING PROGRAM 

 
NOTICE OF CLOSEOUT PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Moore County Board of Commissioners will conduct a public 

hearing at 5:30 pm on December 8, 2015 in the Commissioner’s Boardroom located on the 2nd 

floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North Carolina. 

 

The purpose of this hearing is to review the budget and activities accomplished through the 

FY12 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) for Moore County’s Scattered Site 

Housing Program.  The activities are completed and the Moore County Board of Commissioners 

is in the process of closing out the grant.  Initial award amount of $225,000 consists of housing 

rehabilitation of five (5) households scattered throughout the jurisdiction.  Cost of activities 

under this program totaled $221,140.39 and this amount was dedicated to benefitting low-and-

moderate income persons in Moore County including the areas of Southern Pines, West End, 

Taylortown and Aberdeen. 

 

Citizens will also be given the opportunity to provide oral and written comment on Moore 

County’s use of CDBG funds.  CDBG program information is publicly available by request at 

the Moore County Planning Department located at 1048 Carriage Oaks Drive in Carthage, NC. 

Interested persons may present their views orally or in writing at the public hearing or in writing 

prior to the hearing by communicating with Mr. Tim Emmert of Moore County Planning 

Department at 1048 Carriage Oaks Drive, Carthage, NC.  Within ten (10) calendar days of 

receipt of comments a response will be provided.  All citizens of Moore County are invited to 

attend and participate in the public hearing.  Persons with disabilities are requested to contact the 

Planning Department in advance to ensure appropriate accommodations are made. 

 



This information is available in Spanish or any other language upon request.  Please contact Tim 

Emmert at 910/947-5010 TTY: 800/735-2962 or at 1048 Carriage Oaks Drive, Carthage, North 

Carolina for language accommodations. Esta información está disponible en español o en 

cualquier otro idioma bajo petición. Por favor, póngase en contacto con Tim Emmert al 910/947-

5010 o en 1048 Oaks Drive Carthage, North Carolina de alojamiento para esta solicitud. 

 

 
 
Please publish the above in the non-legal (display) section of The Pilot for 1-day only On 
Sunday, November 22nd. 
 
 
Please send Invoice and Affidavit of Publication to: 
 
Stephanie Cormack 
Moore County Planning Dept. 
PO Box 905 
Carthage, NC  28327      
 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  12/8/2015 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM: Bryan Phillips   
 
DATE: November 13, 2015   
 
SUBJECT: Advanced Life Support Equipment Purchase / Lease Agreement  
 
REQUEST: 
1.  Make a motion to do all of the following upon final approval of the County Attorney and Chief 
Financial Officer: (1) award the bid (RFP#: 2016-04) to U.S Bancorp Government Leasing and Finance 
Inc.; (2) authorize Moore County to enter into a purchase contract not to exceed $355,043.83 for the 
purchase of Zoll X Series Advanced Life Support equipment; and (3) authorize the Chairman to sign all 
associated documents. (Approval must be given by both the County Attorney and CFO for all three items. 

 
2.  Make a motion to approve the attached Budget Amendment and allow the Chairman to sign all 
associated documents pending the Moore County Attorney and Finance Officer approval. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Moore County Emergency Medical Services is in critical need of new cardiac Monitor/Defibrillators with 
12 lead, NIBP, Pulse Oximetry, and Capnography capabilities.  
 
Our current Zoll Monitor/Defibrillator equipment is ten plus years old and were factory upgraded 
approximately 5 years ago to meet the new Advanced Life Support standards.  All the equipment is now 
out of warranty and we have seen major equipment problems in the recent past.  We had this equipment 
on the capital replacement plan and were purchasing one per year for the last three years; however we 
have added additional services to the citizens each year which has not allowed the replacement of any of 
the older out of warranty equipment.  
 
We will be lease/purchasing twelve (12) “new” Zoll X Series units and maintaining our three (3) 
“current” Zoll X Series units for a total of fifteen (15) total. This purchase allows all our units to be of the 
newest technology and accomplish equipment standardization. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
The Zoll X Series Advanced Life Support equipment will be purchased off of a Federal Supply Schedule 
Group Purchase Program as approved by the Moore County Attorney and Finance Officer. 
 
A Formal Bid was issued following the Moore County Finance Department policies for the lease 
financing of the equipment. Two responsive bids were received. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Moore County EMS will use the budgeted amount within its operational budget to make the lease 
payments on an annual basis. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
X. A.



RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
1.  Make a motion to do all of the following upon final approval of the County Attorney and Chief 
Financial Officer: (1) award the bid (RFP#: 2016-04) to U.S Bancorp Government Leasing and Finance 
Inc.; (2) authorize Moore County to enter into a purchase contract not to exceed $355,043.83 for the 
purchase of Zoll X Series Advanced Life Support equipment; and (3) authorize the Chairman to sign all 
associated documents. (Approval must be given by both the County Attorney and CFO for all three 
items). 
 
2.  Make a motion to approve the attached Budget Amendment and allow the Chairman to sign all 
associated documents pending the Moore County Attorney and Finance Officer approval. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation  
Contract 
Budget Amendment 







  Agenda Item:    
         Meeting Date:  12/8/2015 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Denise Brook, HR Director  
  
DATE: October 21, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Health Benefit Plan Summary Plan Description  
 
PRESENTER:   Denise Brook 
 
 
REQUEST:    
 
Request the Board of Commissioners authorize the County Attorney, the County Manager and 
the Human Resources Director to make changes to the Summary Plan Description (SPD) as 
necessary to stay in compliance with applicable laws or to clarify terminology, limitations and 
exclusions of the Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The SPD summarizes the benefits and limitations of the County’s Health Plan (Plan). It 
outlines the requirements for being covered under the Plan, the provisions concerning 
termination of coverage, a description of the Plan benefits (including limitations and 
exclusions), cost sharing, the procedures to be followed in submitting claims for benefits and 
remedies available for appeal of claims denied.   The SPD will occasionally require revisions for 
compliance with applicable laws or to clarify terminology, limitations and exclusions.  The SPD 
does not contain information on Plan design or employee contribution amounts. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Effective immediately  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Request the Board of Commissioners make a motion authorizing the County Attorney, the 
County Manager and the Human Resources Director to make changes to the Summary Plan 
Description (SPD) as necessary for compliance with applicable laws and/or to clarify 
terminology, limitations and exclusions of the Plan. 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
X. B.



 Agenda Item:   
 Meeting Date: December 8, 2015 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM: Randy Gould, Public Works Director  
 
DATE: November 16, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Property Exchange with the Village of Pinehurst 
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould 
 
REQUEST: 

This is a request for the Moore County Board of Commissioners to approve the attached 
Warranty Deed transferring property shown as Area A on the attached plat map from the County to 
Pinehurst.  In addition, the Board is requested to accept the attached Warranty Deed transferring 
property shown as Area B on the plat map from Pinehurst to the County.  The transfer to the County 
also includes various utility easements from the Village to the County. 
 
BACKGROUND:   

The County of Moore owns a tract of land situated in the Village of Pinehurst, which is known as 
“Tract 5” and which is immediately north of other County-owned property.  The tract is 
approximately 4,986 sq. ft. (.11 acres) and valued at $22,890 according to the County’s tax records. 

   
The Village would like to exchange Tract 5 for a portion of the property adjacent to the east side 

of the County-owned lot south of Tract 5.  The Village’s tract will be approximately 4,986 sq. ft. (.11 
acres) and has a calculated value of approximately $18,886 (total tract size is 2.86 acres and valued at 
$471,900 according to the County’s tax records). 

 
Pursuant to NCGS § 160A-274, the County and Village are permitted to exchange real property 

upon the approval of their respective governing body. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:   

None. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Make a motion to approve the Warranty Deed transferring the property shown as Area A on the 
plat map from the County of Moore to the Village of Pinehurst and to accept the Warranty Deed 
transferring the property shown as Area B on the plat map from the Village of Pinehurst to the 
County of Moore and to accept the utility easements upon Village property.  Finally, authorize the 
Chairman to sign all necessary documents. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Maps of Property Lines Prior to and After the Exchange 
2. Warranty Deed from the County of Moore to the Village of Pinehurst 
3. Warranty Deed from the Village of Pinehurst to the County of Moore 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
X. C.



 Property Lines Prior to the Exchange 

 
 Property Lines After the Exchange 

 
(Lines were drawn on top of a GIS map of the area and are for illustrative purposes only) 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and Return to: Office of the Moore County Attorney, P. O. Box 905, Carthage, NC 28327 
 

WARRANTY DEED 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
MOORE COUNTY 
 
THIS WARRANTY DEED (hereinafter this “Deed”) is made this the _____ day of 
__________________, 2015, from the County of Moore, a political subdivision of the State of North 
Carolina, whose address is P.O. Box 905, Carthage, NC 28327, hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR, to 
the Village of Pinehurst, a body corporate and politic of the State of North Carolina, whose address is 395 
Magnolia Rd., Pinehurst, NC 28374, hereinafter referred to as GRANTEE. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
THAT GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the certain good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, transfer and convey 
unto GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, all that certain lot, track or parcel of land situated in Mineral 
Springs Township, Moore County, North Carolina and being a portion of land of GRANTOR as recorded 
in Book 4055, Page 266, LRK 20120216, at the Moore County Public Registry, said land is being 
identified as “Area A” as shown on a plat attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 
“A” and being more particularly described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at a found one inch iron pin 12 inches below ground level 
which is located South 54 degrees 22 minutes 45 seconds East 138.88 
feet from a set no. 5 rebar which is flush with the ground, which is 
located South 01 degrees 54 minutes 00 seconds West 89.05 feet from a 
3/8 inch iron pin which was found 9 inches below ground, which is 
located South 34 degrees 55 minutes 13 seconds East 145.49 feet from a 
found one inch iron pin which is set 2 inches below ground and which is 
located North 75 degrees 36 minutes 19 seconds East 320.31 feet from a 
5/16 set iron pin at bent iron 4 inches below ground which is a control 
corner that has NAD 83 NC Grid coordinates of N = 527844.55 feet, E = 



Page 2 of 2 

1859465.52 feet with a combined factor of .99985504; thence from said 
BEGINNING POINT and with the line of the lands of Moore County 
(see Deed Book 1556, Page 98, Moore County Public Registry), North 
54 degrees 22 minutes 45 seconds West 118.45 feet to an unmarked 
point on the old line; thence with a new line, North 59 degrees 30 
minutes 43 seconds East 92.08 feet to an unmarked point; thence South 
08 degrees 19 minutes 54 seconds East 116.94 feet to the point and place 
of BEGININNING and containing 4986 square feet. 

 
This conveyance is made subject to utility easements, other easements, and restrictive covenants of record 
that are enforceable against the real property hereby conveyed. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot, tract or parcel of land, and all privileges and appurtenances 
thereto belonging to the said Grantee in fee simple; subject, however, to the exceptions, reservations and 
conditions hereinabove referred to. 
 
And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee simple, has the 
right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear of all encumbrances, and 
that Grantor will warrant and defend the title against the lawful claims of all persons, subject however, to 
the exceptions, reservations and conditions hereinabove referred to. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this instrument to be executed by the Chairman of the 
Board of County Commissioners and attested to by the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners.  
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  Attest: 
 
 
     
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  Laura M. Williams 
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 (SEAL) 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
I,  , Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that 
Laura M. Williams personally came before me this day and acknowledged that she is the Clerk to the 
Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore and that by authority duly given, and as the act of the 
Board, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Chairman, Nick J. Picerno, sealed with its 
seal and attested to by her as the Clerk to the Board. 
 
Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this _____ day of ___________________, 2015. 
 
 
My commission expires:     
       Notary Public 



bgodfrey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by and Return to: Office of the Moore County Attorney, P. O. Box 905, Carthage, NC 28327 
 

WARRANTY DEED 
 
NORTH CAROLINA 
MOORE COUNTY 
 
THIS WARRANTY DEED (hereinafter this “Deed”) is made this _____ day of __________________, 
2015, from the Village of Pinehurst, a body corporate and politic of the State of North Carolina, whose 
address is 395 Magnolia Rd., Pinehurst, NC 28374, hereinafter referred to as GRANTOR, to the County 
of Moore, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, whose address is P.O. Box 905, Carthage, 
NC 28327, hereinafter referred to as GRANTEE. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
THAT GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the certain good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant, bargain, sell, transfer and convey 
unto GRANTEE, its successors and assigns, all that certain lot, track or parcel of land situated in Mineral 
Springs Township, Moore County, North Carolina and being a portion of land of GRANTOR  as recorded 
in Book 737, Page 336, LRK 00024680, at the Moore County Public Registry, said land is being 
identified as “Area B” as shown on a plat attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit 
“A” and being more particularly described as follows: 
 

BEGINNING at an iron rod set which is located South 79 degrees 00 
minutes 14 seconds West 70.51 feet from a concrete monument found 
which is the northeast comer of the Village Chapel, Inc. tract (see Deed 
Book 532, Page 24, Moore County Public Registry); thence from said 
BEGINNING POINT and with the line of the lands of Village Chapel, 
Inc., South 79 degrees 00 minutes 14 seconds West 25.94 feet to a 
concrete monument found which is the northwest comer of the said 
Village Chapel, Inc. tract; thence leaving the lands of the Village Chapel, 
Inc. and with the line of the Moore County tract (see Deed Book 1556, 
Page 98, Moore County Public Registry) North 08 degrees 17 minutes 09 



Page 2 of 2 

seconds West 205.34 feet to an iron pipe found; thence with a new line 
South 54 degrees 25 minutes 46 seconds East 35.97 feet to an iron rod 
set; thence with a new line South 08 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds East 
179.19 feet to the point and place of BEGININNING and containing 
4,986 square feet. 

 
This conveyance is made subject to utility easements, other easements, and restrictive covenants of record 
that are enforceable against the real property hereby conveyed.  Specifically conveyed by Grantor to 
Grantee are certain utility easements identified as “Easement A,” “Easement B,” and “Easement C,” as 
shown on a plat attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “B” 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the aforesaid lot, tract or parcel of land, and all privileges and appurtenances 
thereto belonging to the said Grantee in fee simple; subject, however, to the exceptions, reservations and 
conditions hereinabove referred to. 
 
And the Grantor covenants with the Grantee, that Grantor is seized of the premises in fee simple, has the 
right to convey the same in fee simple, that title is marketable and free and clear of all encumbrances, and 
that Grantor will warrant and defend the title against the lawful claims of all persons, subject however, to 
the exceptions, reservations and conditions hereinabove referred to. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this instrument to be executed by the Mayor of the 
Village of Pinehurst and attested to by the Village Clerk.  
 
VILLAGE OF PINEHURST  Attest: 
 
 
     
Nancy Roy Fiorillo  Name:   
Mayor  Village Clerk 
 
 
 (SEAL) 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
I,  , Notary Public of the County and State aforesaid, certify that 
________________________________ personally came before me this day and acknowledged that 
he/she is the Village Clerk for the Village of Pinehurst and that by authority duly given, and as the act of 
the Village Council, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its Mayor, Nancy Roy Fiorillo, 
sealed with its seal and attested to by him/her as the Village Clerk. 
 
Witness my hand and official stamp or seal, this _____ day of ___________________, 2015. 
 
 
My commission expires:     
       Notary Public 



bgodfrey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



bgodfrey
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



Agenda Item: 
Meeting Date:   

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
 
FROM: Randy Gould, PE 
  Public Works Director 
 
DATE:  December 8, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: Bar Rake Purchase Award  
 
 
REQUEST: 
MOTION TO:  Approve and award the purchase of a bar rake to Aqualitec in the amount not to exceed 
$131,000 and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
An Invitation for Formal Bids (IFB) was issued October 22, 2015 for a bar rake for the Water Pollution 
Control Plant. The bar rake will replace an out of service bar screen. The bar rake will prevent costly 
repairs and compliance issues by cleaning trash and debris from the wastewater entering the plant. 
Aqualitec was the only bidder to respond on November 3, 2015. 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
MOTION TO:  Award purchase of a bar rake to Aqualitec. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
This project is a capital item. Purchase order not to exceed $131,000 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
MOTION TO:  Award and approve the purchase of a bar rake to Aqualitec in the amount not to exceed 
$131,000 and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Invitation for Formal Bids 
Contract  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
X. D.12/8/2015

























































FN 15-0398 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE 

 

 
THIS PURCHASE CONTRACT (this “Contract”) is made the 8th day of December, 2015, 

between Aqualitec Corp., a corporation formed under the laws of the State of California (the 
“Vendor”), and the County of Moore, a political subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the 
“County”). 
 

1. Exhibits 

 
The Exhibits below are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this Contract. In interpreting 

this Contract and resolving any ambiguities, the main body of this Contract will take precedence over 
the Exhibits, and any inconsistency between the Exhibits will be resolved in the order in which the 
Exhibits appear below.  Each reference to Aqualitec Corp. in the Exhibits will be deemed to mean 
the Vendor. 
 

Exhibit A: Specifications  
Exhibit B: Bid Response 

 
2. Description of Goods 

 

The Vendor will transfer and deliver to the County, and the County, subject to the conditions set 
forth in this Contract, will take delivery and accept a washer/compactor and mechanically cleaned 
screen meeting the specifications as provided for in the attached Exhibits (the “Goods”). 

 
The Vendor agrees that all Goods must fully conform to this Contract and failure to adhere to any 

portion, including but not limited to, quantity, quality, and time of performance, will constitute a 
breach of this Contract. 
 

3. Term of Contract 

 
The term of this Contract is from December 8, 2015, through June 30, 2016. 
 
The Vendor will deliver the Goods covered by this Contract to the County on or before June 30, 

2016.  Delivery will be made to the Moore County Water Pollution Control Plant, which is located at 
1094 Addor Rd., Aberdeen, NC 28315. The parties mutually agree that time is of the essence. 

 
4. Payment to the Vendor 

 
The County will pay the Vendor an amount not to exceed $131,000.00, which includes delivery 

of the Goods.  Payment will occur within 30 days after delivery and acceptance of the Goods. 
 

5. Inspection 

 

The County will have the right to inspect and test the Goods prior to acceptance. 



 

FN 15-0398 Page 2 of 157 

 
6. Risk of Loss and Title 

 

Risk of loss and title will pass to the County upon delivery and acceptance of the Goods. 
 

7. Product Recall 

 
In the event of any recall notice, technical service bulletin, or other important notification 

affecting the Goods, notice will be provided to the County as provided for under Section 19 of this 
Contract. 

 
8. Warranties 

 
The Vendor represents and warrants that: 
 

a. It is an incorporation validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of 
California and is qualified to do business in North Carolina; 

b. It has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute, deliver, and perform its 
obligations under this Contract; 

c. The Goods comply with all requirements set forth in this Contract; 
d. The Goods are free of defects in title, claims, liens, labor, material, or fabrication; 
e. The Goods are suitable for the purposes intended; and 
f. The Goods are of merchantable quality. 

 

9. Insurance 

 
The Vendor will comply with the North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Act and will provide 

for the payment of workers’ compensation to its employees in the manner and to the extent required 
by the Act.  In the event the Vendor is excluded from the requirements of the Act and does not 
voluntarily carry workers’ compensation coverage, the Vendor will carry or cause its employees to 
carry adequate medical and accident insurance to cover any injuries sustained by its employees or 
agents during the performance of this Contract. 

 
The Vendor will maintain, at its expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 
 

Commercial General Liability $2,000,000 
Automotive Liability $2,000,000 

  Umbrella Coverage $5,000,000 
 

The Vendor agrees to furnish the County proof of compliance with the insurance coverage 
requirements of this Contract upon request.  The Vendor, upon request by the County, will furnish a 
certificate of insurance from an insurance Vendor, licensed to do business in the State of North 
Carolina and acceptable to the County, verifying the existence of the insurance coverage required by 
the County.  The certificate will provide for sixty (60) days advance notice in the event of 
termination or cancellation of coverage. 

 



 

FN 15-0398 Page 3 of 157 

10. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Vendor will indemnify and hold harmless the County, 

its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 
direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers or 
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising 
out of or resulting from the performance of this Contract or the actions of the Vendor, its officials, 
employees, or contractors under this Contract or under the contracts entered into by the Vendor in 
connection with this Contract.  This indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
11. Health and Safety 

 
The Vendor will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions 

and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while performing under this 
Contract. 

 
12. E-Verify 

 
Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the County may 

not enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s subcontractors under the contract, 
comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  The Contractor 
represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  Further, the Contractor warrants that any subcontractors used by the Contractor 
will be in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 

 

13. Non-Discrimination in Employment 

 
The Vendor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of 

age, sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability. In the event the Vendor is determined by the final 
order of an appropriate agency or court to be in violation of this provision or any non-discrimination 
provision of federal, state or local law, this Contract may be suspended or terminated, in whole or in 
part, by the County.  In addition, the Vendor may be declared ineligible for further contracts with the 
County. 

 
14. Governing Law 

 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of 

the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions 
relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the General Courts of Justice in the County of 
Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 
15. Breach; Termination of the Contract 

 
In the event the Vendor breaches the terms of this Contract by one of the following, the County 

may, by written notice to the Vendor, cancel all or any part of this Contract or exercise any other 
remedy allowed by law: 

 
a. Non-delivery, as required; 
b. Not providing adequate assurance of performance; or 



 

FN 15-0398 Page 4 of 157 

c. Breaches any term or condition of this Contract. 
 
This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified Goods and may be 

terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days notice if such funds become unavailable. 
 

16. Successors and Assigns 

 
The Vendor will not assign its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the County.  

The Vendor has no authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the County. 
 

17. Compliance with Laws 

 
The Vendor represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, and local laws, regulations 

or orders, as amended or supplemented. 
 

18. Notices 

 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when 

received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

COUNTY OF MOORE: MOORE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
 ATTN:  RANDY GOULD, DIRECTOR 
 P.O. BOX 1927 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327    
 
VENDOR: AQUALITEC CORP. 

ATTN:  OLIVIER MONFORT 
3415 S. SEPULUEDA BLVD. 
SUITE 1100 
LOS ANGELES, CA  90034 

 
19. Audit Rights 

 
For all Services being provided under this Contract, the County has the right to inspect, examine, 

and make copies of any and all books, accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the 
performance of this Contract.  Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon by 
both parties.  The Vendor must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week of the 
request for them. 

 
20. County Not Responsible for Expenses 

 
The County will not be liable to the Vendor for any expenses paid or incurred by the Vendor 

unless otherwise agreed to in writing. 
 

21. Equipment 

 
The Vendor will supply, at its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and supplies required 

to perform under this Contract unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 



 

FN 15-0398 Page 5 of 157 

22. Non-Waiver 

 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect 

that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available 
to it by law or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract 
will constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
23. Entire Agreement 

 
This Contract and all exhibits provided for in Section 1 constitute the entire understanding 

between the parties and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, 
relating to the subject matter hereof. 

 
24. Amendment 

 
This Contract may only be amended by the written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

25. Drafted by Both Parties 

 
This Contract is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and no interpretation will be made 

to the contrary. 
 

26. Headings 

 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of 

any provision. 
 
 

The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed 
by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Contract is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signatures on the following page.] 



 

FN 15-0398 Page 6 of 157 

AQUALITEC CORP.  Attest: 

 
 

    
By:   By:   
Title:   Title:   
 
Date:    Date:   
 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  Attest: 

 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  Laura M. Williams 
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 
 
Date:    Date:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 

 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 7 of 157 

SPECIFICATIONS 

 

BACKGROUND:   

The Moore County Water Pollution Control Plant is replacing the current bar screen with a bar rake.  
Permitted flow is 10 Million Gallons per Day (MGD).  Average daily flow is under 5 MGD.  A storm 
event could range from 10-15 MGD.  The County will do the installation with the Vendor’s 
technician on-site overseeing the installation and guaranteeing that the installation is correct. 
 
THE VENDOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL OF THE FOLLOWING: 
 

SECTION:  WASHER/COMPACTOR AND APPURTENANCES 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
1.1 DESCRIPTION: 
 

A. The Vendor shall provide and test Washer/Compactor, explosion proof motor, controls, 
and appurtenances is indicated and specified; and 

 
B. The Vendor shall ensure the Washer/Compactor and control panels shall be completely 

factory manufactured.   System must be compatible with 4-20 milliamp signal. 
 

1.2 REFERENCES SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND STANDARDS 
 
The Vendor shall comply with the specifications, codes, and standards of the following, 
where applicable: 

 
A. American Gear Manufacturers Association (AGMA); and 

 
B. National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA); and 

 
C. Underwriters Laboratory (UL). 

 
1.3 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. The Vendor shall submit the following shop drawings: 
1. Certified shop and erection drawings. Vendor shall submit files of the proposed 

equipment in capacity, size, and arrangement; and 
2. Drawings showing materials of construction, thicknesses, operating and maintenance 

envelope and assembly weight; and 
3. Shop drawing data for accessory items; and 
4. Operating and maintenance instructions and parts lists; and 
5. List of recommended spare parts other than those specified; and 
6. Gear reducer data including service factor, efficiency, torque rating and materials; 

and 
7. Schematic control and power wiring diagrams including interconnecting and internal 

wiring diagrams; and 
8. Control panel drawings; and 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 8 of 157 

9. Equipment weight and lifting points for installation and removal purposes; and 
10. Number, size and weight of pieces shipped; and 
11. Vendor shall provide warranty information; and 
12. Shop and field testing procedures, set up and equipment to be used; and 
13. Vendor’s product data; and 
14. Material Certification: 

a. Provide certification from the Vendor that the materials of construction are 
recommended and suitable for the service conditions specified and indicated; 
and 

15.  Vendor shall provide detailed assembly instructions. 
 

1.4 SPARE PARTS 
 

A. Vendor shall provide all spare parts which shall be interchangeable with similar parts 
installed. 
1. Spare parts: 

a. One (1) set of explosion proof solenoid valve; and 
b. Three (3) sets of nozzles. 

2. One set of all special tools required; and 
3. Spare parts shall be available within 150 miles of Aberdeen, North Carolina. 

 
1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

A. Equipment shall be the product of one (1) manufacturer, which is the Vendor. 
 

B. Vendor shall provide the Washer/Compactor, explosion proof motor and appurtenances as 
a complete and integrated package to insure proper coordination and compatibility and 
operation of the system. 
 

C. Equipment shall be Vendor’s standard cataloged product and modified to provide 
compliance with the drawings, specifications, and the service conditions. 
 

D. Vendor shall have a sales representative company with an office within 150 miles of 
Aberdeen, North Carolina. Sales representative company shall have spare parts 
available in the office. 
 

E. Vendor shall perform shop tests of the equipment. 
 

F. Service of a factory-trained technician shall be provided and specifically trained on 
the equipment being installed by the County. 

 
Vendor’s service technician shall be present on-site for all items listed below: 
1. Installation supervision; and 
2. Functional testing: calibrate, check alignment and perform a functional test; and 
3. Field performance testing; and 
4. Training: field operation and maintenance instruction including all materials, slides, 

videos and handouts; and 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 9 of 157 

5. Any additional time required of the factory trained service technician to assist in 
placing the equipment in operation at no additional cost to the County. 

 
G. Factory welding shall use shielded arc, inert gas, TIG method. 

 
H. All stainless steel subassemblies shall be acid passivated after welding for corrosion 

resistance and to provide a superior surface finish. The passivation shall be done by using 
an acid passivation paste in the weld and heat-affected areas and spray-on acid solutions 
elsewhere. After passivation, the weldments shall be thoroughly rinsed with clean water 
and allowed to air dry. 

 
PART 2 - PRODUCT 

 
2.1 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 
 

A. Washer/Compactor shall be installed as specified and indicated by Vendor’s Submittals. 
 

B. Service:  Washer/Compactor shall reduce the volume of screenings.  The volume 
reduction shall be at least 50% and shall have a dry solid concentration of at least 30%. 

 
C. Screenings shall enter in the inlet hopper and shall be conveyed by the shaftless auger 

into the washing zone. 
 

D. The captured solids shall be compacted, dewatered and discharged. 
 

E. Interface:  Room for inspection, adjustment and repair shall be provided. 
 
2.2 WASHER/COMPACTOR CONSTRUCTION 
 

A. General 
1. Vendor shall ensure that all screenings shall be conveyed by a shaftless auger that 

operates in the forward direction. Then, the captured solids shall be compacted, 
dewatered and discharged in a container. 

 
B. Inlet Hoper 

1. Vendor shall ensure that the inlet hopper shall direct screenings material from the 
conveyor into the transport tube. The gap between the inlet hopper and the conveyor 
discharge chute shall be no larger than 1/4” in order to keep a perfect odor control. 
The inlet hopper shall be made of type 304L stainless steel. 

 
C. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the transport tube: 

1. The transport tube shall be made of type 304L stainless steel; and 
2. High-density polyethylene (HDPE) shall cover the transport tube to avoid wear; and 
3. The easily adjustable compression gate shall allow the screenings to be compacted 

and a perforated sheet strainer to dewater the screenings. 
 

D. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the Discharge Chute: 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 10 of 157 

1. The discharge chute shall be made of type 304L stainless steel and designed in 
conformance with the applicable safety standards.  The inspection cover shall have 
an easy access to the wear parts. 

 
E. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the Auger: 

1. The shaftless  auger  shall  be  made  of  alloy steel  with  a  protective  polyurethane 
coating. 

 
F. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the Spray Bars: 

1. The wash zone shall include a spray wash system to wash organic residue from 
screenings; and 

2. The  spray bars  shall  activate  during the  screw  rotation  in  order  to  increase  the 
washing efficiency; and 

3. The Washer/Compactor shall be directed by a timer. During peak loading conditions, 
the frequency of compaction and washing shall be adjusted; and 

4. Two (2) explosion proof solenoid valves shall be located on the top of the 
Washer/Compactor to allow spray bars to work properly on the transport tube and on 
the perforated sheet strainer. 

 
G. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the Perforated sheet strainer: 

1. The drainage trough shall be a perforated inlet area that capture screenings and allows 
liquid to drain. 

 
H. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the Adjustable feet: 

1. Feet shall be adjustable in order to fit every structure. 
 

I. Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the Anchor Bolts, Bolts and Nuts: 
1. Bolts, nuts, lock washers shall be of type 304L stainless steel; and 
2. Anchor bolts type shall be of type 304L stainless steel. 

 
2.3 Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the DRIVE SYSTEM: 
 

A. Vendor shall provide one (1) explosion proof motor as follows: 
1. The Washer/Compactor assembly shall be driven by an electric motor. The motor 

shall be TEFC, UL rated for operation in Class 1, Div 1 environment; and 
2. Rating: 480V, 3-ph, 60 Hertz; and 
3. Motor shall operate without overheating at the speeds specified and indicated in the 

Vendor’s manuals; and 
4. Motor shall have high temperature thermal overloads for motor winding high 

temperature and high motor brake temperature. 
 
2.4 Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the CONTROLS AND INSTRUMENTATION: 
 

A. All controls shall be provided for the fully automatic operation of the Washer/Compactor. 
The Washer/Compactor shall be factory wired so that the electrician is only required to 
make the electrical connections to the control panel and from the control panel to a 
junction box at the Washer/Compactor; and 
 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 11 of 157 

B. Control panel shall be UL listed and manufactured in the United States. 
 

C. The Washer/Compactor shall be furnished with a complete control system housed in an 
enclosure complying with the specific requirements: 
1. Design Local control panel shall be delivered to jobsite, prewired ready for 

installation; and 
2. Control panel: NEMA 4X stainless steel; and 
3. Power Requirements: 480 Volt, 60 Hz, 3-Phase; and 
4. Motor Requirements: 1.5 Hp; and 
5. Explosion proof emergency stop button; and 
6. Unit shall be controlled manually, on timer or with an ultrasonic water level. 

 
D. The Vendor shall ensure that the local control panel plus other accessories shall perform 

the functions of: 
1. Circuit breaker: 

a. Motor starters; and 
b. Control power transformer; and 
c. Obstruction alarm. 

 
E. The Vendor shall ensure the following controls shall be provided with the control panel: 

1. Reversing motor starter for the motor; and 
2. START, STOP and RESET pushbutton; and 
3. HAND-OFF-REVERSE selector switch 

  
2.5 Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the SHOP TESTING: 
 

A. Explosion proof motor shall be shop tested; and 
 

B. Control panel shall be shop tested: 
1. Test all functions and alarms of the control panel; and 

 
C. Washer/Compactor  shall be shop tested: 

1. The Washer/Compactor shall be completely factory assembled and inspected prior to 
shipment. 

 
2.6 SERVICE 
 

A. Field technician shall be available for field services within 150 miles of Aberdeen, North 
Carolina. 

 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 

 
3.1 Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the INSTALLATION: 
 

A. All  installed  items  shall  be  in  accordance  with  shop  drawings  and  manufacturer 
instructions with no exceptions; and 

 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 12 of 157 

B. Vendor shall furnish four copies of operation and maintenance manuals which shall 
be retained at the installation site to assist plant operators. 

 
3.2 Vendor shall ensure the following regarding the FIELD TESTING: 
 

A. Field testing shall not be conducted without a procedure with no exceptions noted, 
calibration certificates for all testing equipment, and a completed and signed pretesting 
check list; and 
 

B. After installation, inspection, operation, testing and adjustment of the equipment, a 
Vendor’s field service technician shall conduct performance test for the unit in the 
presence of the County to determine the unit’s ability to deliver its rated capacity under 
specified conditions; and 

 
C. Make all adjustments necessary to place equipment in specified working order at time of 

above tests. 
 

 

SECTION:  MECHANICALLY CLEANED SCREEN AND APPURTENANCES 

 
PART 1 - GENERAL 

 
1.1 DESCRIPTION 
 

A. Vendor shall provide and test mechanically cleaned screen, explosion proof motor, 
controls and appurtenances as indicated and specified. 
 

B. The screen and control panels shall be completely factory manufactured. 
 
1.2 REFERENCES SPECIFICATIONS, CODES, AND STANDARDS 

 
The Vendor shall comply with the specifications, codes, and standards of the following, 
where applicable: 

 
A. American Gear Manufacturers Association (AGMA); and 

 
B. National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA); and 

 
C. Underwriters Laboratory (UL). 

 
1.3 SUBMITTALS 
 

A. The vendor shall submit the following shop drawings with the bid response: 
1. Certified shop and erection drawings. Vendor shall submit files of the proposed 

equipment in capacity, size, and arrangement; and 
2. Drawings showing materials of construction, thicknesses, operating and maintenance 

envelope and assembly weight; and 
3. Hydraulic calculations verifying compliance to the design criteria; and 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 13 of 157 

4. Shop drawing data for accessory items; and 
5. Operating and maintenance instructions and parts lists; and 
6. Listing of reference installations as specified with contact names and telephone 

numbers; and 
7. List of recommended spare parts other than those specified; and 
8. Special tools; and 
9. Gear reducer data including service factor, efficiency, torque rating and materials; and 
10. Schematic control and power wiring diagrams including interconnecting and internal 

wiring diagrams; and 
11. Control panel drawings; and 
12. Equipment weight and lifting points for installation and removal purposes; and 
13. Number, size and weight of pieces shipped; and 
14. Vendor shall provide warranty information; and 
15. Vendor’s literature as needed to supplement certified data; and 
16. Shop and field testing procedures, set up and equipment to be used; and 
17. Vendor’s product data; and 
18. Material Certification 

a. Provide certification from the Vendor that the materials of construction 
specified are recommended and suitable for the service conditions specified and 
indicated; and 

19. Vendor shall provide detailed assembly instructions.  
 
1.4 SPARE PARTS 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that the following spare parts are provided and shall be 
interchangeable with similar parts installed. 
1. Spare parts: 

a. Two (2) straps; and 
b. Two (2) sets of rake wheels; and 
c. One (1) set of slack sides bushing; and 
d. One (1) set of top detection bushing; and 

2. One (1) set of all special tools required; and 
3. Spare parts shall be available within 150 miles of Aberdeen, North Carolina. 

 
1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that the equipment specified shall be the product of one (1) 
manufacturer, which is the Vendor. 

 
B. The Vendor shall provide the screens, explosion proof motor and appurtenances as a 

complete and integrated package to insure proper coordination and compatibility and 
operation of the system. 

 
C. The Vendor shall ensure that the equipment specified shall be manufacturer’s standard 

cataloged product and modified to provide compliance with the drawings, specifications 
and the service conditions specified and indicated. 

 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 14 of 157 

D. The Vendor shall have a sales representative company with an office within 150 miles of 
Aberdeen, North Carolina.  Sales representative company shall have spare parts 
available in the office. 

 
E. The Vendor shall perform shop tests of the equipment. 

 
F. The Vendor shall ensure that the service of a factory-trained technician shall be provided 

and specifically trained on the type of equipment being acquired by the County.  Service 
technician shall be present on-site for all items listed below: 
1. Installation supervision; and 
2. Functional testing: calibrate, check alignment and perform a functional test; and 
3. Field performance testing; and 
4. Training: field operation and maintenance instruction including all materials, slides, 

videos and handouts; and 
5. Any additional time required of the factory trained service technician to assist in 

placing the equipment in operation at no additional cost to the County. 
 

G. The Vendor shall ensure that factory welding shall use shielded arc, inert gas, TIG 
method. 

 
H. The Vendor shall ensure that all stainless steel subassemblies shall be acid passivated 

after welding for corrosion resistance and to provide a superior surface finish. The 
passivation shall be done by using an acid passivation paste in the weld and heat-
affected areas and spray-on acid solutions elsewhere. After passivation, the 
weldments shall be thoroughly rinsed with clean water and allowed to air dry. 

 
PART 2 - PRODUCTS 

 
2.1 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION 
 

A. Screening system capacities and operating data shall be indicated in the mechanically 
cleaned screen schedule. 
 

B. Screen shall be installed in the channel as specified and indicated. 
 

C. Service: Screen raw wastewater (95%) and septage receiving station debris (5%). 
 

D. Screen shall discharge to a compactor. 
 

E. The screen shall be capable of operating with the screen 50 percent blinded. 
 

F. Mechanically cleaned screen shall be front-clean, back-discharge, and installed in the 
existing channel. 
 

G. Mechanically cleaned screen with submerged bearings that require regular maintenance 
are not acceptable. 
 

H. Mechanically cleaned screen with an inclination different from 90° is not acceptable. 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 15 of 157 

 
I. Submerged moving sprockets are not acceptable. 

 
J. Multiple rake technology is not acceptable. 

 
K. The screen technology shall be straight bars.  Perforated screen basket is not acceptable. 

 
L. Interface:  Room for inspection, adjustment and repair shall be provided. 

 
2.2 SCREEN CONSTRUCTION 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the general construction:  
1. Screen: Shall mechanically front-clean and back-discharge; and 
2. Mechanically-cleaned screen shall be front cleaning since the shovel rake shall remove 

debris from the upstream side of the screen; and 
3. The maximum upstream water level shall not exceed 5.28' on a 50% reduction of the 

screen's free open-area. The screen shall be capable of processing the peak flow 
without exceeding the maximum upstream water level based on a 50% reduction of 
the screen's free open-area; and 

4. Screenings s h a l l  b e  discharged on the downstream side of screen through 
discharge chute to compactor. 
 

B. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the frame: 
1. Frame: Shall be constructed of type 304L stainless steel; and 
2. The side frames shall be suitably reinforced to support all loads imposed on the 

mechanism during operation, installation, assembly, or transportation; and 
3. Anchor Support frames onto the operating floor shall be of type 304L stainless steel 

hardware; 
a. Screen frame shall be supplied in three pieces.  Vendor representative shall 

approve screen frame assembly; and 
4. Screen Enclosure: screen shall be fully enclosed above the operating floor with 

hinged access door. 
 

C. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the bar rack and baseplate: 
1. Material: Shall be of type 304L stainless steel; and 
2. The bar screen shall consist of rectangular 304L stainless steel bars; and 
3. The bar screen shall be firmly fastened at top and bottom; and 
4. Bar spacing shall be as specified.  Provide screens accurately constructed to provide 

a clear spacing of 3/8’’ (10 mm) between the bars; and 
5. The bars shall be straight and cover the full equipment width. The point of discharge 

from the bar screen shall be 3’ – 11’ and screenings shall be discharged into a 
conveyor. 
 

D. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the dead plate: 
1. Bar screens shall have a dead plate and stiffeners construct of type 304L 

stainless steel with a minimum thickness of 1/8” (3 mm); and 
2. The dead plate shall be 1/8” thick constructed of type 304L stainless steel plate and 

extends from the top of the bar screen to the point of discharge; and 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 16 of 157 

 
E. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the discharge chute: 

1. A discharge chute shall be added to divert screenings from screen to self- 
dumping hopper; and 

2. Material:  shall be of type 304L stainless steel, minimum thickness of 1/8”. 
 

F. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the single shovel rake: 
1. The debris shall be removed from the bar screen by a 304L stainless steel single 

shovel rake assembly designed to mesh with the bar screen; and 
2. The  single  shovel  rake  shall  consist  of  type  304L stainless  steel  teeth  that 

penetrate completely the bar screens. 
 

G. The vendor shall ensure the following concerning the scraper: 
1. A scraper assembly shall be installed to assist removing the debris from the shovel 

rake; and 
2. The scraper shall be type of 304L stainless steel and high-density polyethylene 

(HDPE) and shall penetrate completely in the shovel rake to insure effective 
debris removal. 
 

H. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the side seals: 
1. To prevent bypass around the sides of the unit, seals shall be mounted on the 

upstream face of the screen and on each side of the unit; and 
2. The seals shall be secured in place by backing plates and constructed of type 304L 

stainless steel. 
 

I. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the anchor bolts, bolts and nuts: 
1. Bolts, nuts, lock washers shall be of type 304L stainless steel; and 
2. Anchor bolts type shall be of type 304L stainless steel. 

 
J. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the drive mechanism: 

1. The single shovel rake shall be mounted on one (1) sturdy strap resistant to any 
chemical agents and frost; and 

2. A pulley shall be used to transmit a rotational motion; and 
3. The strap shall be capable of lifting no less than 1,000 pounds; and 
4. The single shovel rake shall be guided by two (2) high-density polyethylene (HDPE) 

wheels; and 
5. Two (2) inductive proximity sensors shall be placed at the top of the equipment to 

command the sense of rotation; and 
6. The gravity and the weight of the shovel rake shall insure the closing motion. 

 
K. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the overload protection: 

1. A sensor torque overload protection device shall  stop the screen and start an 
alarm.  Contacts for screen failure shall be provided. 

 
2.3 DRIVE SYSTEM 
 

One (1) explosion proof motor shall be provided. 
 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 17 of 157 

A. The Vendor shall ensure the following concerning the motor: 
1. The rake assembly shall be driven by an electric motor. The motor shall be TEFC, 

UL rated for operation in Class 1, Div 1 environment; and 
2. Rating: 480V, 3-ph, 60 Hertz; and 
3. Motor shall operate without overheating at the speeds specified and indicated; and 
4. Motor  shall  have  high  temperature  thermal  overloads  for  motor  winding  high 

temperature and high motor brake temperature; and 
5. Motor shall have a sufficient capacity to start and operate screen at 50 percent 

blinded without exceeding nameplate ratings for current and power and without 
operating in the service factor. 

 
2.4 CONTROLS AND INSTRUMENTATION 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that all controls shall be provided for the fully automatic 
operation of the screen. The screen shall be factory wired so that the electrician is only 
required to make the electrical connections to the control panel and from the control 
panel to a junction box at the screens. 
 

B. The Vendor shall ensure that the control panel shall be UL listed and manufactured in the 
United States. 

 
C. The Vendor shall ensure that the mechanically cleaned bar screen shall be furnished 

with a complete control system housed in an enclosure complying with the specific 
requirements: 
1. Design Local control panel shall be delivered to jobsite, prewired ready for 

installation; and 
2. Control panel: NEMA - Stainless steel; and 
3. Power Requirements: 480 Volt, 60 Hz, 3-Phase; and 
4. Motor Requirements: 1.0 Hp; and 
5. Explosion proof emergency stop button; and 
6. Unit shall be controlled manually, on timer and with an ultrasonic water level. 

 
D. The Vendor shall ensure that the local control panel plus other accessories shall perform 

the functions of: 
1. Circuit breaker: 

a. Motor starters; and 
b. Control power transformer; and 
c. Obstruction alarm. 
 

E. The Vendor shall ensure that the following controls shall be provided with the control 
panel: 
1. Reversing motor starter for the motor; and 
2. START, STOP and RESET pushbutton; and 
3. HAND-OFF-REVERSE selector switch. 

 
2.5 SHOP TESTING 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that motors shall be shop tested. 



Exhibit A 

FN 15-0398 Page 18 of 157 

 
B. The Vendor shall ensure that the control panel shall be shop tested.  Test all functions 

and alarms of the control panel. 
 

C. The Vendor shall ensure that the screen shall be shop tested.  The bar screen shall be 
completely factory assembled and inspected prior to shipment. 

 
2.6 SERVICE 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that a field technician shall be available for field services 
within 150 miles of Aberdeen, North Carolina. 

 
PART 3 - EXECUTION 

 
3.1 INSTALLATION 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that all installed items shall be in accordance with shop drawings 
and manufacturer instructions, without exception. 

 
B. Vendor shall furnish four copies of operation and maintenance manuals which shall 

be retained at the installation site to assist plant operators. 
 
3.2 FIELD TESTING 
 

A. The Vendor shall ensure that field testing shall not be conducted without a procedure 
with no exceptions noted, calibration certificates for all testing equipment, and a 
completed and signed pretesting check list. 

 
B. The Vendor shall ensure that after installation, inspection, operation, testing, and 

adjustment of the equipment, a Vendor’s field service technician shall conduct 
performance test for the unit in presence of the County to determine the unit’s 
ability to deliver its rated capacity under specified conditions. 
1. Performance Test: During tests, observe and record flow rates, channel water 

depths, headloss, and motor inputs.  Repeat tests until specified results are obtained. 
 

C. The Vendor shall make all adjustments necessary to place equipment in specified working 
order at time of above tests. 



Exhibit B 

FN 15-0398 Page 19 of 157 

Bid Response by Aqualitec for IFB#: 2016-04  

 

[See the following 138 pages.] 























































































































































































































































































  Agenda Item:         

         Meeting Date:  12/08/2015 
 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  D. Bryan Phillips    

 
DATE:  11/13/2015   

 
SUBJECT:  Fire Commission Chair and Vice Chairman   

 

PRESENTER: D. Bryan Phillips 

 
 
REQUEST: 

Accept the recommendation from the Fire Commission members to re-appoint Mike Cameron as 
Chairman and re-appoint Larry Upchurch Vice-Chairman. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The Fire Commission was established by the Moore County Board of Commissioner in 2014 to be an 
advisory commission.  This commission was give direction and goals by the BOC and has been 
successful working on those goals during the first year.  Mike Cameron was appointed to be the 
Chairman and Larry Upchurch was appointed as Vice-Chairman.  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

 
Approval of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

 
Make a motion to…recommend Mike Cameron to serve a second term as Fire Commission Chairman  
Make a motion to …recommend Larry Upchurch to serve a second term as Fire Commission Vice-
Chairman  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

 
 

 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
XI. A.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:   
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 12/1/2015 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Local Emergency Planning Committee 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint member to the Local Emergency Planning Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The term for member John Ganley, the hospital representative on the Local Emergency Planning 
Committee, expires this month.  Mr. Ganley is recommended for reappointment to an additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint John Ganley to the Local Emergency Planning Committee for a three-
year term expiring December 31, 2018. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
XI. B.12/8/2015



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:   
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 12/1/2015 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint Sheriff’s designee to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The former Sheriff’s designee member of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council is no longer 
employed with the County.  The Sheriff has recommended Lieutenant Josh Craven to serve in this 
position. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint Lieutenant Josh Craven as the Sheriff’s designee member of the Juvenile 
Crime Prevention Council for a two-year term expiring December 31, 2017. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
XI. C.12/8/2015



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:   
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 12/1/2015 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint two members to the Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The terms for Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee members Helen 
Schillaci and Virginia Whiting expire this month.  Each is willing and recommended to serve an 
additional term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Helen Schillaci and Virginia Whiting to the Nursing and Adult Care 
Home Community Advisory Committee for three-year terms expiring December 31, 2018. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
XI. D.12/8/2015


	AGENDA
	VI.A. PUBLIC SAFETY ORDINANCE
	VII.A. PUBLIC OFFICIAL BONDS
	VII.B. 11/17 REGULAR MINUTES
	VII.C. 11/17 MINUTES SPECIAL MTG
	VII.D. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	VII.E. TAX RELEASES/REFUNDS
	VII.F. PROJECT ORD REVISION #5
	VII.G. PATTERSON LOT
	VII.H. BUDGET ORD. AMENDMENT
	VIII.A. PH: SCATTERED SITE CLOSEOUT
	X.A. ALS EQUIPMENT
	X.B. SUMMARY PLAN DESCRIPTION
	X.C. PROPERTY EXCHANGE
	X.D. BAR RAKE PURCHASE
	XI.A. APPTS/FIRE COMMISSION
	XI.B. APPTS/LEPC
	XI.C. APPTS/JCPC
	XI.D. APPTS/CAC



